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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Beetel Teletech Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Beetel Teletech Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Standalone Statement of Profit and Lloss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information. (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner S0 required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, from time to time, (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its loss,
total comprehensive loss, its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
® TheCompany’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information

included in the Director’s report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

® If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation
of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income/loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsibie for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such financial controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
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inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results
of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

8)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the
Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls
with reference to the standalone financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
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h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements.(Refer Note 35 to the standalone financial statements).

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses. (Refer Note 50 to the standalone financial statements).

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company. (Refer Note 52 to the standalone financial statements).

(a)

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 43
to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 43

(c)

to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final dividend for the
year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under
Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicabie for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.:117366W/W-100018)

Nilesh H. Lahoti

X - 7 (Partner)
' = (Membership No.130054)
UDIN: 24130054BKFRKG5384

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 09, 2024
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1{f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the standalone financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements of Beetel Teletech Limited
(“the Company”) as at March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements based on the internal control with reference to the standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India{“ICAI”){the “Guidance
Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to the standalone financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to the standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to the standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to the standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the standalone financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to the standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to the
standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, maintained an adequate internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
criteria for internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

\-. E\\ \V#AL|

Il Nilesh H. Lahoti
' (Partner)
(Membership No.130054)
UDIN: 24130054BKFRKG5384
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 09, 2024
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and records
examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of Property, Plant and Equipment, and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment, including right-of-use assets were physically verified during the year by the
Management which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verifications.

The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment including Right of Use assets and intangible
assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

The inventories except for goods-in-transit, were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable
intervals. In our opinion and based on information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations.
In respect of goads in transit, the goods have been received subsequent to the year end. No discrepancies of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared
with the books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly
returns comprising (stock statements, book debt statements and other stipulated financial information) filed by the
Company with such banks are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective
quarters.

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties
during the year, and hence reporting under clause (iii} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or securities and hence reporting
under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause
(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013 .We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies {Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records
Page 8 of 11
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(vii)

(b)

have been made and maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, income-tax,
cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly deposited by it with the
appropriate authorities in all cases during the year. We have been informed that the provisions of the Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Duty of Excise, Custom Duty and Value Added Tax are not applicable to the Company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2024 on
account of disputes are given below:

Period to which | Forum where | Unpaid
Name of Statue Nature of dues the amount dispute is ‘amount(in
relates pending million)#
FY 2004-05 to
FY 2009-10, FY Assessing
Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax 2014-15, FY Officer 0.88
2016-17 to FY
2017-18
FY 2007-08 to
Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax FY2008-09, FY | Appellate 387.17
2013-14to FY Authority
2017-18
Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax FY 2013-14 Salles IS 2.05
Tribunal
April, 2005 to .
Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax Dec,2008 High Court 5.53
Goods and service tax Act, Assessing Officer FY 2018-19 Ass'essmg 0.79
2017 Officer
Goods and service tax Act, GsT FY 2017-18 Appella.te 3.19
2017 Authority
Directorate of
Custom Act, 1962 Custom duty July, 2014 to Revenue 62.84
March, 2018 Intelligence
{DRI)
FY 2018-19, FY
Custom Act, 1962 Custom duty 2019-20 and FY Appella'te 3.29
Authority
2021-22

#The above-mentioned figures represent the total disputed cases without any assessment of Probable, Possible and
Remote, as done in case of Contingent Liabilities. Of the above cases, total amount deposited in respect of Sales tax is
Rs. 22.30 million, Goods and service tax is Rs. 0.15 million and Custom is Rs. 3.44 million.
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, applied by the
Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima
facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary or associate.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary company or associate.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year and hence reporting under clause (x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and upto the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its
business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year covering specific processes and
periods scoped in for internal audit as per internal audit plan in the financial year ended on March 31, 2024.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons

connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.
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(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(a)

(b)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Hence, reporting
under clause (xvi)(a), {b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.,

sheet date, will get discharged by the Company zs and when they fall dye,

The Company has losses on the basis of average of net profits /(losses) earned/incurred during the three immediately
preceding financial years and hence, it is not required to spend any money under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLp
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366WXW~100018)

ol :-\'r‘-.
VALY
Nilesh H. Lahoti
(Partner)
(Membership No.130054)
UDIN: 24130054BKFRK65384

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 09, 2024
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BEETEL TELETECH LIMITED

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

CIN: U32204HR1999PLC042204

{Rs. in Million)
: As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipments 4(a) 12.46 14.52
(b} Right of use assets 4(b) 77.94 104.43
{c) Intangible assets 5 17.34 17.30
(d) Intangible assets under development 6 3.46 2.10
{e) Financial assets
(i) Investments 7 103.77 388.22
(i)  Other financial assets 8 92.21 78.21
(f)  Deferred tax assets (net) 34 158.48 81.06
(g) income tax assets (net) 9 66.35 6.73
(h)  Other non-current assets 10 216.77 232.26
Total non-current assets 748.78 924.83
Current assets
(a) Inventories 11 662.48 606.72
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 12 1,203.96 925.89
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 105.65 53.94
(ili) Other bank balances 14 5.77 350.70
(iv) Other financial assets 8 34.08 6.48
(c) Other current assets 10 421.14 505.02
Total current assets 2,433.08 2,448.75
Total assets 3,181.86 3,373.58
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 50.92 50.92
(b)  Other equity 16 {1,091.41) (829.58)
Total equity (1,040.49) {778.66)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 416.85 642,62
(i) Lease liabilities 18 76.12 104.45
(b) Provisions 19 50.83 53.71
(c) Other non-current liabilities 20 158.48 189.94
Total non-current liabilities 702.28 990.72
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 1,272.26 105.66
(ii) Trade payables
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21 20.27 40.47
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 21 936.74 1,394.36
small enterprises
{iii} Lease liabilities 18 28.33 23.62
(iv) Other financial liabilities 22 876.74 1,018.32
(b) Provisions 19 4591 46.87
{c) Other current liabilities 20 339.82 527.09
(d) Current tax liabilities{net) - 5.13
Total current liabilities 3,520.07 3,161.52
Total liabilities 4,222.25 4.152.24
Total equity and liabilities 3,181.86 ,373.58

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements  1-54

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

~
.’ /./"-txl Q
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BEETEL TELETECH LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

CIN: U32204HR1999PLC042204

(Rs. in Million)

particulars - Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I Revenue from operations 23 9,788.22 15,084.55
N Other income 24 53.30 196.70
Il Total income {I + 1) 9,841.52 15,281.25
IV Expenses
{a)  Purchase of traded goods and services 25(a) 8,733.39 13,704.73
(b)  Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 25(b) {(33.07) 190.72
() Employee benefits expenses 26 455.42 466.97
{d)  Finance costs 27 272.28 245.54
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 28 46.78 40.09
{f)  Other expenses 29 416.69 356.61
Total expenses 9,891.49 15,004.66
V  (Loss)/profit before exceptional items and tax (llI-IV) {49.97) 276.59
VI Exceptional [tem 30 (284.45) -
VIl (Loss)/profit before tax (V+V1) (334.42) 276.59
VIl Tax expense/{credit)
(a) Current tax 31 - 58.64
(b)  Short/(excess) provision for tax related to prior years 31 8.23 (3.48)
(c) Deferred tax 31 {78.26) 79.31
{70.03) 134.47
IX (Loss)/Profit for the year (VII-VIII) (264.39) 142.12
X Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 3.42 8.32
(i) Income tax relating to these items (0.86) {2.09)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss 2.56 6.23
XI  Total comprehensive (loss)/Profit for the year {IX+X) (261.83) 148.35
XIl  (Loss)/earning per equity share {face value of share Rs. 10 each)
(a) Basic(inRs.) 32 (51.93) 27.91
(b) Diluted (in Rs.) 32 {51.93) 27.91
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial 1-54
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BEETEL TELETECH LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

CIN: U32204HR1999PLC042204

Equity share capital (Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, Numbers (Rs. in Million)
subscribed & fully paid up)

Balance as at April 1, 2022 5,091,607 50.92
Changes during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 5,091,607 50.92
Changes during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5,091,607 50.92

(Rs. in Million)
Other equity Reserves and surplus Total
Capital Reserve | Securities premium| Retained earnings
(Refer Note 16.1) | (Refer Note 16.2) | (Refer Note 16.3)
Balance as at April 1, 2022 2.50 5.27 (985.70) (977.93)
Profit for the year - - 142.12 142.12
Other comprehensive income for the year arising from defined - 6.23 6.23
benefit obligation (net of income tax)
Total movement for the year - B 148.35 148.35
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2.50 5.27 (837.35) (829.58)
Loss for the year - - (264.39) (264.39)
Other comprehensive Income arising from defined benefit - 2.56 2.56
obligation(net of income tax)
Total movement for the year - - (261.83) (261.83)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2.50 5.27 (1,099.18) (1,091.41)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

X
|- .-ﬂl Ci- ~
L 'b /_-_'_"“x¢ N\
o NI
. . A
Nilesh H. Lahoti Chartered (_‘;_-)\
Partner Accountants /]
Membership No. 130054 Jrs/f
‘\..‘_____,/x_/\‘/; /
=

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 9, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

1-54

Beetel Teletech Limited

\,2

Soumen Ray
Additional Director
(DIN: 09484511)

Place: Gurugram, India

Date: May 9, 2024

M

Chief Einancilai Officer
Place: Gurugram, India

Date: May 9, 2024

L

Sanjeevth/hab

Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 08174113)

Place: Gurugram, India
Date: May 9, 2024




BEETEL TELETECH LIMITED
STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
CIN: U32204HR1999PLC042204

(Rs. in Million)
|particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit for the year before tax (334.42) 276.59
| Adjustments for :
Finance costs 272.28 245.54
Interest income (40.98) (36.49)
Dividend Income - (152.28)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.43) (0.01)
Exceptional Item (refer note 30) 284.45 -
Unrealised exchange loss/{gain) (net) 1.78 28.08
Depreciation and amortisation expense 46.78 40.08
Provision for doubtful debts 10.12 (22.55)
Bad debts/amounts written off 0.02 0.05
Inventory written off 2.81 1.98
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back (3.09) (2.00)
Allowances for obsolete/slow moving stock (22.69) 13.10
Allowances for doubtful advances (14.55) 14.45
Operating profit before working capital changes 202.08 406.55
M in working I:
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (288.12) 1,136.53
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (35.88) 188.81
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (36.08) 21,01
(Increase)/decrease in other assets 114.45 40.88
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (474.57) (1,590.60)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions (3.84) (21.88)
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities (136.98) 408.28
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (215.31) (166.44)
Cash generated from/{used in} operating activities (874.25) 423.14
Income tax paid (72.98) (13.54)
Net cash flows from/{used in) operating activities (947.23) 409.60
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.50 0.29
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment (5.03) (11.75)
Payments for intangible assets (15.04) (12.33)
Proceeds from deposits with Bank 344.93 58.01
Dividend Income - 152.28
Investment in associate company - (88.20)
Interest received 35.58 31.50
Net cash flows from investing activities 360.94 129.80
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds/(repayment) of short term barrowings (refer note 45) 1,272.26 (220.29)
Repayment of non-current borrowings (refer note 45) (748.28) (100.36)
Proceeds of non-current borrowings (refer note 45} 414.52 -
Payment of principal portion of lease liability refer note 18) (23.62) (19.53)
Interest paid (refer note 45} (276.88) (237.35)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 638.00 {577.53)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year 51.71 (38.13)
Cash and cash equival at the beg of the year 53.94 92.07
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 105.65 53.94
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balance with scheduled banks: In current accounts 105.65 53.94
Total cash and cash equivalents as per note 13 105.65 53.94

1. The above cash flow statement prepared under the "Indirect method" as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Cash flow statement".

2. Brackets indicate cash outflow.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone 1-54
financial statements
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BEETEL TELETECH LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Corporate information

Beetel Teletech Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated in India on March 30, 1999. The Company is a leading provider
of premium enterprise, networking, and lifestyle solutions, in the information, communication, and technology domains for
customers across all industry verticals. Company holds a commendable market share in telecom and allied products. The

Company also have own line of products, including landlines and loT solutions, under iconic brand, Beetel.

The registered address of the Company is First Floor, Plot No. 16, Udyog Vihar, Phase IV, Gurugram-122015, Haryana, India.
The Company’s CIN - U32204HR1999PLC042204

During the year effective January 1, 2024, Bharti Airtel Service Limited has become the parent company and Bharti Airtel
Limited, the intermediate parent company.

Summary of material accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

In accordance with the notification issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has voluntary adopted the Indian
Accounting Standard (referred to as Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 with
effect from April 1, 2016.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance Indian Accounting Standards (referred to “Ind
AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as amended time to time.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual and going concern
basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of indian Rupees (‘Rs.’), except per share data
and unless stated otherwise.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. [n estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the assets or the liability if the market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these standalone financial statements is determined on such basis.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or
a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

%4



BEETEL TELETECH LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

Leve! 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform with the current year's
classification / disclosure.

2.3 Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as a going concern and under the historical
cost convention, except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting date as required under relevant Ind AS. Refer note no. 3.1.1

2.4 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) Itis expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

c) It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

Considering the nature of business activities, the operating cycle has been assumed to have duration of 12 months.

Accordingly, all assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle
and other criteria set out in Ind AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and Schedule |1l to the Companies Act, 2013.

2.5 Revenue recognition

2.5.1. Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when control of the products being sold is transferred to the customer and
when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance obligations in the contracts are fulfilled at the time
of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer acceptance depending on customer terms. Revenue towards satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on
account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract and any taxes or duties collected
on behalf of the government such as goods and services tax, etc. when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company. Revenue is only
recognized to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal will not occur. An estimate is made of goods that will
be returned and a liability is recognized for this amount using the best estimate available.

2.5.2 Rendering of services

Income from services rendered is recognized based on agreements/arrangements with the customers upon transfer of
control over time.

The Company enters into contract with customers where the period between the transfer of the promised services to the
customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the company has adjusted the transaction
price and has deferred the revenue for contracts along with the related cost of providing those services, whose period has
not expired-:



BEETEL TELETECH LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

2.5.3 Dividend and interest income
£2.2 AVidend and interest income

2.6 Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease
commencement date, The cost of the right of use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the injtial
measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any |ease payments made at or before the commencement date |ess any
lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the [essee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-
Use assets s subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and
adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease
term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis
as those of property, plant and equipment. Right of use assets are tested for impairment whenever there s any indication
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate
specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed

reasonably certain to exercise that optior) and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the jease payments made and re-
measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the
Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.



BEETEL TELETECH LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of twelve

months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Whenever the terms of the lease, transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under a finance lease are recognised as receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in
the leased assets. Finance lease income is allocated to the periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the

net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

When a contract includes lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’ to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component.

Unearned revenue received in advance is presented as deferred revenue within liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

2.7 Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian
rupees.

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate
prevailing on the Balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised

in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are carried at historical cost.

2.8 Employee benefits

The Company’s employee benefits mainly include salaries, bonuses, defined contribution plans, defined benefit plans,
compensated absences. The employee benefits are recognised in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
the employees.

Short-term employee benefits are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss at undiscounted amounts during the period
in which the related services are rendered.

2.8.1 Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit and loss as and when services are
rendered by the employees. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic contributions.



BEETEL TELETECH LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

2.8.2 Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit
plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried at the year-end using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and

is not reclassified to profit or loss.
The obligation towards the said benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet, at the present value of the defined benefit
obligations less the fair value of plan assets (being the funded portion). The present value of the said obligation is determined

by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using appropriate discount rate.

2.8.3 other long-term employee benefits

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. Compensated absences benefit comprises of
encashment and availment of leave balances that were earned by the employees over the period of past employment.

The Company provides for the liability towards the said benefits on the basis of actuarial valuation carried at the year-end
using projected unit credit method. The related re-measurements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they arise.

2.9 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
2.9.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in
the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

2.9.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the standalone
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

2.9.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

2.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The
cost of PPE comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset
ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying
fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Upon transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment on fair value as of
transition date as calculated under Ind AS and used that fair value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment
as on transition date.

Capital work-in-progress:

Projects under which tangible PPE are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related
incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than properties under construction) less their residual
values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Asset Category Useful lives (years)

Plant and machinery * 10

Leasehold improvement Lease term or 20 years
whichever is less

Office equipment 5

Furniture and fixtures* 5

Computers* 3

Mobile Phones* 2

Fixed assets costing up to Rs. 10,000 are being fully expensed off.

*For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and technical evaluation carried out by the management believes
that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Hence
the useful lives for these assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies
Act 2013.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Major computer software in the nature of ERP license is amortized over a period of 5 years and other software are amortised
over the period of license, generally not exceeding five years.

2.11 Impairment

The carrying amounts of tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. Animpairment loss is recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (determined using the first-in-first-out method) and net realisable value. The
costs comprise its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the inventories to its present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has changed the cost formula used for measuring inventories from
weighted average cost to first-in-first-out and the impact of the same is not material.

2.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows {(when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the

receivable can be measured reliably.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided. Provision is based on
historical experience. The estimate of such warranty related costs is revised annually.
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2.14 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financia! liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities valued at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.15 Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, plus in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

2.15.1 Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt

instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

-  the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

2.15.2 Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for financial assets other than those financial assets classified as at fair

value through profit or loss. Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and is included in the “other
income” line item.

2.15.3. Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and in included in the ‘other income’ line items.
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2.15.4 Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.15.5 Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not
fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal
to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those
are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance
at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.16 Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

2.16.1 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by an entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

2.16.2 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at fair value
through profit or loss.

2.16.2.1 Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial liability is held for trading or it is
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
- It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

- oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

— Itis a derivative that is not desighated and effective as a hedging instrument.

2.16.2.2 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are
subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is
not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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2.16.2.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.16.2.4 Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payment to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee issued is measured on initial recognition at their fair value and if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

—  the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of ind AS 109; and
- the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance

with the principles of Ind AS 18.

2.16.2.5 Derivatives contract

The Company enters into forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risks. Further details of
derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note 40.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

2.17 Contingent assets/liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no
longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the
date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash on hand, balances with banks which are
unrestricted for withdrawal and usage and demand deposit with bank.

2.18.1 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit after tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Company are segregated.
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2.19 Segment reporting

The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating
profit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and
in assessing performance. Based on the nature and class of product and services, their customers and assessment of
differential risks and returns and financial reporting results reviewed by chief operating decision maker, the Company has
identified business segments as Own Branded Products and Distribution Products. The Company publishes these Financial
Statements along with the Consolidated Financial Statements. In accordance with Ind AS 108, ‘Operating Segments’, the
Company has disclosed the segment information only in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

2.20 Earnings per share

2.20.1 Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

- The profit attributable to owners of the company

- By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

2.20.2 Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

- The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares; and

- The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.21.1 Factoring Agreements

Company utilize factoring arrangements with banks and other financial institutions (each a "factor") as a short-term
financing alternative to accelerate monetization of trade receivables. Company account for transfers of trade receivables as
a sale when control over the related assets has been surrendered to the factor. Whether control has been relinquished
requires, among other things, an evaluation of relevant legal considerations and an assessment of the nature and extent of

our continuing involvement with the assets transferred.

Factoring agreements reported as a sale are accounted for as a reduction of trade receivables and the proceeds are included
in cash flows from operating activities in the statements of cash flows. Factoring agreements that do not qualify for sale
accounting are reported as collateralized borrowings. If trade accounts receivable do not qualify for sale accounting, the
factor is entitled to demand full repayment of the outstanding balance from Company if the payer of the receivable defaults.
Accordingly, the related assets remain on company’s balance sheet and continue to be reported and accounted for as if the
transfer had not occurred.

The amount received from customers under factoring arrangement, however remained unpaid to factor has been classified
separately within other financial liabilities as “Payables under factoring arrangements” caption.

2.21.2 Reverse Factoring Agreements

The Company participates in reverse factoring arrangements under which its suppliers may elect to receive early payment
of their invoice from a financial institution by factoring in their receivable from the Company. Under such arrangements, the
financial institution agrees to pay the settlement amounts to the participating supplier in respect of invoices owed by the
Company and receives settlement from the Company on the due date of the original invoice. Generally, the suppliers carry
the commission cost related to such arrangements. From the Company’s perspective, the arrangement does not extend
payment terms beyond the standard terms agreed with other suppliers that are not participating in such arrangements. The
Company has not derecognized the original liabilities to which the arrangement applies because neither a legal release was
obtained, nor the original liability was substantially modified on entering into the arrangement. The Company includes the
amounts factored by suppliers within trade payables because the nature and function of the financial liability remain the
same as those of other trade payables. In certain reversed factoring arrangements, the Company carries the cost of arranging
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such a factoring for its suppliers. For such arrangements, the Company presents related accounts payable separately within
other financial liabilities as “Payables under the reverse factoring arrangements” caption. The payments under reverse
factoring arrangements are included within operating cash flows because they continue to be part of the normal operating
cycle of the Company and their principal nature remains operating.

2.22 Material events

Events after the reporting period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the
reporting period and the date when the financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. Two
types of events are identified by the Company:

(a) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period (adjusting events after the
reporting period); and

(b} those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period (non-adjusting events after the reporting
period).

The impact of the material adjusting events occurring after the reporting period are adjusted in the financial statements and
the impact of non-adjusting events after the reporting period are disclosed in the financial statements.

2.23 Use of estimates

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind
AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the standalone financial
statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented.

2.24 Recent pronouncements

MCA vide notification no. G.S.R. 242(E) dated March 31, 2023 has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 which amends following Ind AS (as applicable to the Company):

e Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments: Disclosures

e Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments

e Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

e Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

e Ind AS12, Income Taxes

e Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, however, these do not have material
impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has evaluated the amendments and the impact is not
expected to be material.

Amendments to Ind AS issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified
any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

3. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

in the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

3.1 Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements:

3.1.1 Going concern assumption

During the year, Company has a total comprehensive loss of Rs. 261.83 million (Previous year comprehensive income of Rs.
148.35 million) and has an accumulated loss of Rs. 1,099.18 million as at March 31, 2024 (Previous year Rs. 837.35 million),
resulting in erosion of its net worth as on that date. Additionally, the Company’s current liabilities exceeds its current assets
by Rs. 1,086.99 million (Previous year Rs. 712.77 million).

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is essentially dependent on its future business and funding plans,
generation of cash flows from its operations, undrawn facilities, negotiation with bankers and continued financial support
from shareholders of the Company as and when required. Considering above, the financia! statements have been prepared
on going concern basis.

3.2 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

3.2.1 Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax laws as applicable in India. Significant judgment is required in determining provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

3.2.2 Deferred Taxes

In assessing the realisability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable, that some portion, or all,
of the deferred tax assets will not be realised. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers the projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based
on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable incomes over the periods in which the deferred
tax assets are deductible, management believes that it is probable that the Company will be able to realise the benefits of
those deductible differences in future.

3.2.3 Estimation of defined benefits and compensated leave of absence

The present value of the gratuity, pension and leave encashment obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved
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in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated
in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of
the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific
countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity and leave encashment obligations are given in note 37.

3.2.4 Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a
lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term {including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and period covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not
to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economicincentive
for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The
Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally
based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.
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4(a). Property, Plant and Equipment

4(b).

(Rs. in Million)

Particulais Leasehold Plant and Computer and Furniture and Total
improvements - equipment's networking fixtures
Property equipment

At cost or deemed cost
Balance as at April 1, 2022 11.34 12.85 41.23 2.57 67.99
Additians 0.10 0.38 11.25 0.02 11.75
Disposals - 1.22 6.48 0.57 8.27
Balance as at March 31, 2023 11.44 12.01 46.00 2.02 71.47
Additions 0.18 0.36 4.49 - 5.03
Disposals - 0.61 4.40 0.21 5.22
Balance as at March 31, 2024 11.62 11.76 46.09 1.81 71.28
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2022 11.34 10.18 34.60 2.29 58.41
Charge for the year - 1.45 4.97 0.1 6.53
Disposals = 1.16 6.42 0.41 7.99
Balance as at March 31, 2023 11.34 10.47 33.15 1.99 56.95
Charge for the year 0.03 0.62 6.37 = 7.02
Disposals - 0.59 4.35 0.21 5.15
Balance as at March 31, 2024 11.37 10.50 35.17 1.78 58.82
Net Carrying value
As at March 31, 2024 0.25 1.26 10.92 0.03 12.46
As at March 31, 2023 0.10 1.54 12.85 0.03 14.52
Right of Use Assets
The movement in carrying value of ROU assets for the year is as follows:

{Rs. in Million

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 = _ March 31, 2023 |

Opening Balance 104.43 93.64
Additions for the year - 34.01
Deletions for the year - -
Depreciation for the year -26.49 -23.22
Closing Balance 77.94 104.43
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5. Intangible assets

Computer Software Total

Particulars

Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
At cost or deemed cost
Balance as at April 1, 2022 73.70 73.70
Additions 10.23 10.23
Disposals = =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 83.93 83.93
Additions 13.31 13.31
Disposals - =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 97.24 97.24
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2022 56.29 56.29
Charge for the year 10.34 10.34
Disposals 5 -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 66.63 66.63
Charge for the year 13.27 13.27
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 79.90 79.90
Net Carrying value
As at March 31, 2024 17.34 17.34
As at March 31, 2023 17.30 17.30

6. Intangible assets under development
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs. in Million Rs. in Million

i) Intangible assets under development 3.46 2.10
3.46 2.10
ii) Intangible assets under development ageing schedule:
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Amount in under development for a period of Total
Less than 1 year |[1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 3.46 - o = 3.46
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Amount in under development for a period of Total
Less than 1 year |1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Projects in progress 2.10 . » - 2.10

Intangibie asset under development as at March 31, 2024 is not overdue for completion.
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7. Investments

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Non-current Investments
a) Investment in equity instruments
Unquoted, at cost
Dixon Electro Appliances Private Limited: 45,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 Each fully paid. 0.49 0.49
b)  Equity component of Investment in preference share instrument* 26.87 26.87
Ungquoted, at cost
Dixon Electro Appliances Private Limited: 8,820,000.00 Unsecured, Non-Convertible, Non-
cumulative and Compulsorily Redeemable, 6% preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid.
a) investment in Subsidiary (Unquoted)**
1 (March 31, 2023 - 1) equity share of Beetel Teletech Singapore Private Limited at USD 1 each 360.86 360.86
fully paid up
Less: impairment charged during the year (284.45) =
Net investment 76.41 360.86
103.77 38822

*Pursuant to the letter of offer dated November 25, 2022 from Dixon Electro Appliances Private Limited (DEAPL), both the Company and Holding
company of DEAPL has subscribed Unsecured, Non-Convertible, Non-cumulative and Compulsorily Redeemable, 6% preference shares 8,820,000
and 9,180,000 respectively of Rs. 10 each fully paid in the ratio of 49% and 51%.

**Company had recognised investment in subsidiary at fair value as deermned cost. During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company assessed
that there are indicators of impairment in respect of its investment in subsidiary and accordingly the Company has performed an impairment
analysis and recorded Rs. 284.45 million as impairment charge as on reporting date.

Information about subsidiary and associate

Name Princlpal activitles Country of Incorporation | % of equlty Interest
As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Wholly owned
Whaolesale business of subsidiary |
Beetel Teletech Singapore Private Limited telecommunication Singapore 100.00 100.00
equipments
Dixon Electro Appliances Private Limited Maanfactur‘erof India Associate : 49.00 49.00
electronic equipments
|
8. Other financial assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good
{a) Security Deposits* 17.16 15.77
(b) Investment in preference share instrument of Dixon Electro Appliances Private Limited 69.45 62.44
{Dixon Electro Appliances Private Limited: 8,820,000.00 Unsecured, Non-Convertible, Non-
cumulative and Compulsorily Redeemable, 6% preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid.)
(c)  Finance lease receivables* (refer note 33) 5.60
92.21 78.21
Unsecured, considered doubtful
(a)  Security Deposits- Credit impaired 0.41 0.41
Less: allowance for credit impaired {0.41) {0.41)
92.21 78.21
Current
(a)  Financial assets measured at fair value
Forward contracts (Refer note 39) 0.29 -
(b) Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.12 3.02
{c)  Finance lease receivables* {refer note 33) 4.10 -
(d) Other receivables 34.88 8.60
39.39 11.62
Less: allowance for credit iImpaired (Other receivables) (5.31) (5.14)
34.08 6.48
Movement in allowances for credit impaired As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Balance at the beginning of the year 5.55 0.41
Created during the year 0.17 5.14
Balance at the end of the year 5.72 5.55

* Itincluges amount due from related parties (refer note 38)

i1 GURUGRAM

2
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9. Income tax assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Non-current
Advance income-tax {net of provision for income tax Nil (March 31, 2023: Nil)) 66.35 6.73
66.35 6.73
10. Other assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
(a) Capital advances 0.37 -
(b) Balances with government authorities** 70.53 55.95
(¢) Deferred contract cost* 145.87 176.31
216.77 232.26
Unsecured, considered doubtful
(a) Balances with government authorities - 6.00
- 6.00
Allowances for credit Impaired - (6.00)
216.77 232.26
Current
Unsecured, considered good
(a) Prepaid expenses 33.89 28.33
(b) Balances with government authoritiest 94.38 54.89
(c) Loans/Imprest to employees 0.12 0.39
(d) Deferred contract cost* 246.84 336.08
(e) Other advances & receivables 4591 85.33
421.14 505.02
Unsecured, considered doubtful
(a) Other advances & receivables 0.59 9.31
Allowances for credit Impaired (0.59) (9.31)
421.14 505.02

*As per Ind AS 115, revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Company had contracts with customers where the period of the transfer of the promised services to the customers are over time. As a
consequence, the Company had adjusted the transaction price and has deferred the service revenue for contracts along with the related cost

of providing those services whose period has not expired as on the reporting period.

** Balances with Government authorities represents recoverables from tax department and deposits under protest paid to Government

authorities which has not been provided for

# includes primarily Taxes recoverable pertains to Goods and Services Tax and customs duty
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11. Inventories

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Stock-in-trade (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 673.89 640.82
Allowances for obsolete/slow moving stock {11.41) {34.10)
662.48 606.72
Included in above:

(i) Goods-in-transit 49.26 154.56
Total goods-in-transit 49.26 154.56
(i) The cost of goods sold recognised as an expense during the year is Rs. 8,700.32 Million {March 31, 2023: Rs. 13,895.45 Million).

{Ii) The method of valuation of inventories has been stated in note 2.12
12 . Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million

Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good* 1,203.96 925.89
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 436.92 426.96

1,640.88 1,352.85
Allowance for doubtful debts {436.92) {426.96)

1,203.96 925.89
Trade receivables ageing as on March 31, 2024
r Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due | Lessthané |6 months- 2-3 Total

1-2 years more than 3 years
months 1 year years

Undisputed Trade receivable
Considered Goed 943.35 220.77 10.83 035 - 1,175.30
Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - -
Credit impaired - 10.05 0.40 0.23 - 0.78 11.46
Disputed Trade Receivables -
Considered Good - - - 13.02 - 15.64 28.66
Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
Credit impaired = - - 13.17| 7.68 404.61 425.46
Total 943.35 230.82 11.23 26.77| 7.68 421.03 1,640.88
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts - {10.05) (0.40)| (13.40)| (7.68) {405.39) {436.92)
Net 943.35 220.77 10.83 13.37 - 15.64 1,203.96
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Trade receivables ageing as on March 31 2023

Outstanding for following

2 periods from due date of payment

Particulars Notdue | Lessthané |6 months- 2-3 Total
1-2 years more than 3 years
months 1year years
Undisputed Trade receivable
Considered Good 707.53 164.44 26.09 12.19 = 910.25
Which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Credit impaired = - 1.33 - - 0.79 2.12
Disputed Trade Receivables
Considered Good - - - - 15.64 15.64
Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Credit impaired = 1.22 10.38 2.57 | 6.29 404.38 424.84
Total 707.53 165.66 37.80 14.76 6.29 420.81 1,352.85
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts - (1.22) {11.71) (2.57)] (6.29) (405.17) {426.96)
Net 707.53 164.44 26.09 12.19 - 15.64 925.89
Movement in allowances for credit loss As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Balance at the beginning of the year 426.96 449.66
Utilised during the year {0.16) {0.15)
Arise/{reversed) of allowances for credit loss 10.12 (22.55)
Balance at the end of the year 436.92 426.96

* Includes Rs. 1 million (March 31, 2023- Rs. 1 million) secured against bank guarantees issued by customers, Rs. 1,496.46 million (March 31,
2023- Rs. 1,044.89 million) secured against credit insurance and Rs. 2.2 million (March 31, 2023- Rs. 193.37) secured against letter of credit.
Insurance against trade receivables, if any, are available only in case there are no dispute with customers.

* Trade receivables of Rs. 602.71 million (March 31, 2023 Rs. 1,125.24 million) are derecognised which are sold on non recourse basis.

* Trade receivables are generally on terms of 7-90 days from date of invoice.

* Trade receivables are recognised after considering significant increase in credit risk, if any.

* For trade recsivables from related parties refer note no 38

*Refer note 40.2.1 for credit risk

13. Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Balances with banks
In current accounts 105.65 53.94
105.65 53.94
14, Other bank balances
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Margin money deposits* 5.77 10.79
Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months and less than 12 months - 339.91
5.77 350.70

*Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 5.77 million (March 31, 2023 Rs. 10.79 million) are issued in favour of Government authorities.
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15. Equity share capital

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 100.00 100.00
March 31, 2024: 10,000,000 Shares
March 31, 2023: 10,000,000 Shares
Issued, subscribed and fully paid
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 50.92 50.92
March 31, 2024: 5,091,607 Shares
March 31, 2023: 5,091,607 Shares
50.92 50,92
15.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year Number of Shares Share Capital
Nos. Rs. in Million
Balance as at March 31, 2022 5,091,607 50.92
Add: Issued during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 5,091,607 50.92
Add: Issued during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5,091,607 50.92

15.2 Voting and other rights

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will be in

15.3 Details of shares held by the holding company

R . As at As at
Fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 (No. of shares) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bharti Airtel Services Limited( effective January 1, 2024) 4,945,239 -
Bharti(LM) Enterprises Private Limited (formerly known as Insanity Productions Private Limited) (till December 31, 2023) 3,603,955
15.4 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the company*
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023

Fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each Number of % holding of equity shares Number of shares % holding of

shares held held equity shares
Bharti Airtel Services Limited( effective January 1, 2024) 4,945,239 97.13% - -
Bharti(LM) Enterprises Private Limited (formerly known as Insanity - 0.00% 3,603,955 70.78%
Productions Private Limited) (Till December 31, 2023)*
Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited* 0.00% 629,521 12.36%
Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited* - 0.00% 629,521 12.36%

15,5 Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

*the shareholders have entered into share sale and purchase agreement with Bharti Airtel Services Limited to sell their shareholding in the company. Accordingly
Bharti Airtel Services Limited has become the holding company w.e.f January 1, 2024,

Promoter name Number of shares held % holding of equity | % change during
shares the year

Bharti Airtel Services Limited( effective January 1, 2024) 4,945,239 97.13% 100.00%

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Promoter name Number of shares held % holding of equity | % change during
shares the year

Bharti(LM) Enterprises Private Limited (formerly known as Insanity Productions Private 3,603,955 70.78% 100.00%

Limited)*

Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited* 629,521 12.36%

Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited* 629,521 12.36%

* till December 31, 2023
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16. Other equity

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Rs. in Million

Rs. in Million

Capital reserve 2.50 2.50
Securities premium 5.27 5.27
Retained earnings {1,099.18) (837.35)
{1,091.41) (829.58)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

16.1 Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year

Movement during the year
Balance at the end of the year

16.2 Securities premium

Balance at the beginning of the year
Movement during the year
Balance at the end of the year

16.3 Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income arising from defined benefit obligation, net of income taxes

Balance at the end of the year

Rs. in Million

Rs. in Million

2.50 2.50
2.50 2.50
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs. in Million

Rs. in Million

5.27 5.27
5.27 5.27
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs. in Million

Rs. in Million

(837.35) (985.70)
(264.39) 142.12
2.56 6.23
(1,099.18) (837.35)

Nature of reserves

16.1) Capital reserve

The Company recognises profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of Company's own equity instruments to capital reserve.

16.2) Securities premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securities premium reserve.

16.3) Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to

shareholders.
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17. Borrowings®

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Rs. in Million

Rs. in Million

Current Borrowings
Secured

17.1 Working capital demand loan

Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 17.2) - 105.66
- 105.66
Unsecured
Working capital demand loan from banks {refer note 17.1) 1,272.26 -
1,272.26 -
Total 1,272.26 105.66
Non-Current Borrowings
Secured
Working capital term Loan from banks (refer note 17.2) - 337.06
- 337.06
Unsecured
External commercial borrowing from bank (refer note 17.4) 416.85 -
External commercial borrowing from other related party (refer note 17.3) - 411.22
416.85 411.22
Total 416.85 748.28
Less: current maturities of long term borrowings E 105.66
416.85 642.62
* The borrowings were used for the purpose for which they were taken.
Note :
Rs. in million

Working capital demand loan as on March 31, 2024

Rate of interest

Total Borrowings

Floating rate borrowing

Fixed Rate Borrowing

a) Unsecured working Capital Loan from Kotak Bank Limited linkedto |interest range 460.00 232.00 228.00
fixed and Repo rate which is payable within 1 year between 8.5%t0 10%
b) Unsecured working Capital Loan from Indusind Bank Limited linked [interest rate 8.35% 231.00 - 231.00
with 3M T bill payable within 1 year
) Unsecured working Capital Loan from Axis Bank linked to fixed and |Interest range 115.08 110.00 5.08
Repo which is payable within 1 year between 8.1%to

B.75%
d) Unsecured working Capital Loan from Citi Bank NA linked to fixed |Interest range 466.18 355.00 111.18
and 1Month T bill+bps which is payable within 1 year between 8.45%to

2 SNoL
Total 1,272.26 697.00 575.26

17.2 Working Capital Term Loan

17.3 External commercial borrowing from other related party

17.4 External commearcial borrowing from bank

a) Working capital term loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd obtained under emergency credit line scheme(ECLGS) which carrying Interest rate of
8.85% t0 9.15% p.a. (March 31, 2023: 7.45% to 8.85% p.a.), is fully repaid during the year.

External commercial borrowing originally was been taken for 5 years and extended to 10 year during the last year with carrying interest rate of
SOFR+450bps has been fully repaid to Eiesha Limited during the year.

In March 2024, External commerical borrowing taken from Citi Bank HK with an interest rate of SOFR+160 basis points for the purpose of refinancing
the existing external commercial borrowing. The loan is schedule to be repaid on December 8, 2029.
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18. Leases

The Company's lease assets primarily consists of lease hold office premises.

The movement in lease liabilities during the year and break up of current and non-current lease liabilities is as follows:

Lease Liabilities

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs. in Million Rs. in Million

Opening Balance 128.07 114.98
Additions for the year - 32.62
Interest accrued for the year 12.67 13.24
Payment of lease liabilities (36.29) (32.77)
Closing Balance 104.45 128.07
Current 28.33 23.62
Non-current 76.12 104.45
The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis are as follows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars

Rs. in Million

Rs. in Million

Less than one year 38.29 36.29
One to five years 86.53 124.82
Total 124.82 161.11
19, Provisions
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs. in Million

Rs. in Million

Non-current provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences (refer note 37)
Gratuity (refer note 37)

Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences (refer note 37)
Gratuity (refer note 37)

Other Provisions

Warranties (refer note 19.1)

Sales return allowance (refer note 19.3)
Litigations (refer note 19.2)

13.10 14.73
37.73 38.98
50.83 53.71
5.44 5.46
16.12 14.87
17.25 16.07
0.11 0.50
6.99 9.97
45.91 46.87
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19.1 Provision for warranties

The Company provides warranty on certain products dealt by it by giving the undertaking to repair/ replace items, which fails to perform satisfactorily
during the warranty period. Provision made as at March 31, 2024 represents the amount of the expected cost of meeting such obligations of repair/

replacement. The details are as follows:

Reconciliation of balance at the beginning and at the end of the year Marc:;:,tZOZd Marc:;:,tzozs
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Balance at the beginning of the year 16.07 15.00
Increase/(reverse) during the year 9.68 12.75
Utilized during the year (8.50) (11.68)
Balance at the end of the year 17.25 16.07

19.2 Provision for litigations

The Company is contending various matters pertaining to excise duty, sales tax and entry tax and has considered provision for the matters where it is

probable that an outflow of resources may be required to settle the obligation. The details are as follows:

Reconciliation of balance at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Rs. in Million

Rs. in Million

Balance at the beginning of the year 29.62 44.11
Increase/(reverse) during the year 2.87 {9.41)
Utilised/Paid during the year {3.69) (5.08)
Total 28.80 29.62
Less: Paid under protest {21.81) (19.65)
Balance at the end of the year 6.99 9.97

19.3 Provision for sales return allowance

Company's customer has contractual right to return goods only when authorised by the Company. An estimate is made of goods that will be returned

and a liability is recognised based on best estimate available and customer agreements.

Reconciliation of balance at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Rs. in Million

Rs. in Million

Balance at the beginning of the year 0.50 0.75
Increase/(reverse) during the year {0.39) {0.25)
Balance at the end of the year 0.11 0.50
20. Other liabilities
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Non-current
Deferred contract revenue* 158.48 189.94
158.48 189.94
Current
(a) Advance received from customer 32.93 83.63
(b) Statutory dues {other than income tax) 27.32 54.36
(c) Deferred contract revenue* 279.57 389.10
339.82 527.09

*As per [nd AS 115, revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when contral of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company had
contracts with customers where the period of the transfer of the promised services to the customers are over time. As a consequence, the Company
had adjusted the transaction price and has deferred the service revenue for contracts along with the related cost of providing those services whose
period has not expired as on the reporting period.
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21. Trade payables

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million | Rs. in Million
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises* 20.27 40.47
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises** 936.74 1,394.36
957.01 1,434.83

* Also include outstanding dues of medium enterprises
**for related party refer note 38

Trade payable ageing as on March 31, 2024 Rs. in Million
Particulars EES Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Tofal
Less than 1year |1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years

Undisputed

i) Due to micro and small enterprises 20.27 - - - 20.27
ii) Others 712.95 109.18 4.64 - 826.77
Disputed Dues

i) Due to micro and small enterprises - - - - -
|ii) Others - 16.01 - - 16.01
Total 733.22 125.19 4.64 - - 863.05
Accrued expenses 93.96 * = = = 93.96
Total Trade Payables 827.18 125.19 4.64 = = 957.01
Trade payable ageing as on March 31, 2023 Rs. in Million

Particulars Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1year |1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years Total

Undisputed

i} Due to micro and small enterprises 40.47 - = - - 40.47
ii) Others 920.76 425.26 - - - 1,346.02
Disputed Dues

i) Due to micro and small enterprises - . - - - -

ii) Others . - - - - -
Total 961.23 425.26 - - - 1,386.49
Accrued expenses 48.34 - - - - 48.34
Total Trade Payables 1,009.57 425.26 - - - 1,434,83

Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The dues to micro and small enterprises as required under MSMED Act, 2006, based on the information available with the Company, is

given below

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million | Rs. in Million

(i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 20.27 4047

each accounting year

{iiJAmount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
year

{iif) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
MSMED Act, 2006

{iv) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year
{v) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006
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22. Other financial liabilities

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million | Rs. in Million
Current
{a) Interest accrued but not due on bank borrowings 5.20 0.57
(b) Payable to employees 38.11 38.37
{c) Financial liability measured at fair value through profit and loss account
(i) Forward contracts {refer note 39) - 4,51
(d) Payables under factoring arrangement 534.07 592.29
{e) Payables under reverse factoring arrangement 21044 284.25
{f) Interest accrued but not due on loan from other related party (refer note 38) - 9.23
(g) Other payables** 88.92 89.10
876.74 1,018.32
** Other payable primarily includes incentives payatiles
23.R from aperations*#
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million | Rs. in Million
{a) Revenue from sale of products 8,566.11 13,961.57
(b) Revenue from rendering of services 1,222.11 1,122.98
9,788.22 15,084.55
*far related party refer note 38
#net off discounts, if any.
23.1 Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:
(Rs. in Million)
Year Ended March 31,2024
Segment own Branded Distribution Total
Products Products
India 1,456.74 8,279.62 9,736.36
Outside India 26.96 24.90 51.86
Total Revenue from contracts with customers 1,483.70 8,304.52 9,788.22
(Rs. in Million)
Year Ended March 31, 2023
Segment Own Branded Distribution Total
Products Products
India 1,470.06 13,578.41 15,048.47
Outside India 8.42 27.66 36.08
Total Revenue from contracts with customers 1,478.48 13,606.07 15,084.55
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23.2 Contract Balances

(Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Trade Receivables 1,203.96 925.89
Contract Assets = =
Contract Liabilities 32.93 83.63
Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:
(Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Ameunts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the 83.63 210.59
year
Performance obligations satisfied in previous years - -
23.3 Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations are as follows:
(Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Within one year 279.57 389.10
More than one year 158.48 189.94

The remaining performance obligations expected to be recognised in more than one year relates to the performance of services that is to be satisfied
within a maximum period of five years. These services relates to products sold by the Company. All the other remaining performance obligations are

expected to be recognised within one year.

24, Other income*

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Rs. in Million

Rs. in Million

{a) Interestincome
(i) On bank deposits
{ii) On security deposits carried at amortised cost
(iii) On preference share instruments
{iv) Others

(b) Other non operating income
(i) Dividend Income
(i) Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back
(iii) Bad Debt Recovered
{iv) Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
{v) Miscellaneous income

25.50 22.08
1.29 1.03
7.01 111
7.18 12.27

- 152.28
3.09 2.00
0.71 1.06
0.43 0.01
8.09 4.86

53.30 196.70

*for related party refer note 38
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25({a). Purchase of traded goods and services

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Purchase of traded goods and services* 8,733.39 13,704.73
8,733.39 13,704.73
*for related party refer note 38
25(b}). Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Inventories at the end of the year:
Stock-in-trade 673.89 640.82
673.89 640.82
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Stock-in-trade 640.82 831.54
640.82 831.54
Net decrease/(increase) (33.07) 190.72
26. Employee benefit expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Salaries and bonus 406.70 416.88
Contribution to provident and other funds 19.93 20.67
Staff welfare expenses 9.97 13.35
Defined benefit plan/other long term benefit 12.33 11.79
Recruitment and staff development 6.49 4.28
455.42 466.97
27. Finance costs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Interest expenses
- On borrowing from banks 87.28 54.07
- On borrowings from other related party (refer note 38) 38.56 29.28
- On lease liability (refer note 18) 12.67 13.24
- On factoring & Other 133.77 148.95
272.28 245.54
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28, Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4a) 7.02 6.53
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5) 13.27 10.34
Depreciation of right of use asset (refer note 4b) 26.49 23.22
46.78 40.09
29, Other expenses@
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million

Advertisement and marketing expense 2743 24.79
Bad debts and advances written off 0.18 0.20
Less: adjusted against provision for doubtful debts (0.16) 0.02 (0.15) 0.05
Bank charges 9.76 29.89
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility** - 1.00
Commission on sales 31.39 7.14
Communication expenses 5.52 5.50
Electricity and water charges 173 1.87
Exchange rate difference (net) 14.11 (14.55)
Freight and cartage 34.99 40.08
Insurance charges 17.30 19.24
Legal and professional expenses# 28.26 34.30
Miscellaneous expenses 0.61 0.84
Printing and stationery 041 0.37
Allowances for doubtful advance* (14.55) 14.45
Allowances for doubtful debt (net)* 10.12 (22.55)
Allowances for obsolete/slow moving stock™* (22.69) 13.10
Rates and taxes* 1.64 (8.84)
Rent expenses 3.00 3.69
Repair and maintenance:

- Others 47.47 56.22
Sales promotion and schemes expenses 50.69 19.95
Security charges 2.25 1.88
Service charges 125.73 80.84
Travelling and conveyance 31.82 34.60
Warranty cost 9.68 12.75

416.69 356.61
*Negative amounts indicate reversals/ameunts net off written back
®for related party refer note 38
**Details of expenditure on corporate social responsibility
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2034 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Operational Expenditure of Satya Bharti Senior Secondar School, Ludhiana Punjab - 1.00
- 1.00
# Payment to Auditor (as included in legal and professional expenses) excluding taxes
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
As Auditor:

Statutory audit fee 340 2.20
In other capacity:

Other services (certification and others) 1.35 1.34

Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.36 0.18

5.11 3.72
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30. Exceptional ltem

recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Expenditure
Impairment charge in value of investment in subsidiary* 284.45 -
284.45 -
*Refer note 7
31. Income taxes
Income taxes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Current tax
In respect of the current year = 58.64
In respect of the previous years 8.23 (3.48)
8.23 55.16
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (70.33) 72.64
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of previous years (7.93) 6.67
Total income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (78.26) 79.31
(70.03) 134.47
Deferred tax impact on other comprehensive income 0.86 2.09
Total income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (69.17) 136.56
Reconciliation of tax expense with accounting profit for the year as follows:
Year ended Year ended

Profit before tax

Income tax @25.168% (year ended March 31, 2023 @ 25.168%)

Adjustments
Tax rate change impact on opening DTA

Tax effect on impairment charge in value of investment in subsidiary

Adjustments in respect of previous years
Net tax expense recognised in profit and loss

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Rs. in Million

Rs. in Million

(334.42) 276.59

(84.17) 69.61

- 63.76
14.70 -

0.30 3.19

(69.17) 136.56

The tax rate used for the years 2023-24 and 2022-23 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate payable by corporate entity in India on

taxable profits under the Indian tax law.

Change in tax rate from 34.94% to 25.168%: During the previous financial year , the Company has opted to concessional tax rate :

The Government of India introduced Section 115BAA under the Income Act, 1961. This section provides an option to the Company to pay
concessional tax rate (i.e., 25.168% inclusive of surcharge and cess) without claiming certain eligible deductions from the income. In the
financial year 2022-23, the Company has opted lower tax rate of 25.168% under new tax regime from old tax regime of 34.94% (i.e., 30% tax
+ 12% surcharge +4% cess). The new regime once opted cannot be changed subsequently. The Company has measured it deferred tax

balances using the lower rate tax.
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33

Earning/(loss) pershare

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Nominal value of equity shares (Rs.) 10 10
{Loss)/Profit attributable to equity shareholders for computing basic and dilutive EPS (A) (264.39) 142,12
(Rs. million)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for computing 5,091,607 5,091,607
Basic EPS (B)
Dilutive effect on weighted average number of equity shares and equity equivalent
shares for computing Diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares and equity equivalent shared for computing 5,091,607 5,091,607
Diluted EPS (C)
Basic earnings/{loss) per share (A/B) Rs, (51.93) 27.91
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (A/C} Rs. {51.93) 27.91
Finance lease receivable
particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Mlllion
Current finance lease receivable 4.10 -
Non-current finance lease receivable 5.60 .
9,70

Leaslng arrangements

The Company entered into finance lease arrangements for certain equipments. The average term of finance leases entered into is 3 years

A receivable under finance lease
Minimum Lease payments Present value of minimum lease
Particulars payments
March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million Rs. in Million Rs. In Million

Not later than one year 4.55 - 4.10
Later than one year and not later than five year 6.55 5.60
Gross investment in the lease 11,10 - 9.70 -
Less:
Unearned finance income (1.40) -
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable 9.70 - 9.70 -
Allowance for uncollectible lease payments - -

9.70 9.70
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34. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net)*

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Deferred tax assets 189.86 176.18
Deferred tax liabilities {31.38) (85.12)
Net deferred tax assets 158.48 81.06
Deferred tax relates to the following: As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. in Million Rs. in Million
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Property, plant and equipment, right to use assets and intangible assets 16.10 22.95
Investment in subsidiary carried at fair value 15.28 72.17
31.38 95.12

Deferred tax asset on account of:
Provision for Debts and advances/inventory obsolescence 114.42 120.38
Employee benefits as per section 43B 21.27 18.72
Lease liability 26.29 32.23
Carry forward losses 13.63 E
Other 14.25 4,85

189.86 176.18
Net deferred tax assets 158.48 81.06

* Considering the nature of the Company’s operations and history of past tax losses, deferred tax assets are recognized in line with ICA! guidelines. With
respect to recognised deferred tax assets, it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be generated in future against which such carry forward losses and

deductible temporary differences will be utilised.

35, Contingent liabilities: ( to the extent not provided for )

a) Guarantees
The financial bank guarantees have been issued to regulatory authorities (Rs. in Millian)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Guarantees issued by Banks on behalf of Company* 0.32 0.82
Total 0.32 0.82
*excludes Bank Guarantees issued by banks to custorn Department against which claims (if any) are warranted by Customer.
b) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt (excluding cases where the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote):

(Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Indirect Tax 125.78 115.77
Other - 6.17
Total 125.78 121.94

The Company's pending litigations above pertains to proceedings pending with VAT, custom department and other authorities. The Company has reviewed all
its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities, where
applicable, in its standalone financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a significant effect on its
standalone financial statements.

The amounts disclosed as contingent liabilities reflect the actual demand received, inclusive of any interest and penalties, if applicable, from various
authorities. In instances where authorities have raised demands inclusive of interest, the Company has adjusted the accrued interest up to the reporting date
in the disclosure for contingent liabilities.

Furthermore, show cause notices relating to Direct and Indirect taxes have neither been acknowledged as claims nor considered as contingent liabilities

36. Commitments:

Capital commitments

(Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for* 0.87 2.32
Total 0.87 2.32
* As of March 31, 2024, Net of capital advance Rs. 0.37 million (March 31, 2023 Rs. Nil)
The Company has other commitments for the purchase orders which are issued after considering requirements as per operating cycle for purchase of-goats-

and services. The Company does not have any long term:commitment or material non-cancellable contractual commitments/ contracts which

material impact on the financial statements. e sk n {;H':-‘;




The Company has other commitments for the purchase orders which are issued after considering requirements as per operating cycle for purchase of goods
and services. The Company does not have any long term commitment or material non-cancellable contractual commitments/ contracts which might have a
material impact on the financial statements.



BEETEL TELETECH LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

37

37.1

37.2

373

37.4

37.5

Employee benefit plan

Defined contribution plan

The Company makes provident fund contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is required to
contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised Rs. 17.17 Million (year ended March 31, 2023 Rs. 17.75 Million)
for provident fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the
scheme.

Defined benefit plans and other employee benefits

Gratuity scheme: The scheme is a defined benefit arrangement providing gratuity benefit expensed in terms of final monthly salary and service. Every employee gets
a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of a qualifying insurance
policy.

Long term employee benefits: Compensated absences include earned leaves and sick leaves. Compensated absences have been provided on accrual basis based on
year end actuarial valuation.

Description of risk exposures
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such Company is exposed to various risks as follow:

Salary risk (salary escalation) [Actual salary escalation will increase the plan’s liability. Escalation in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also
increase the liability.

Discount rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
Mortality & disability Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.
Withdrawals Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can

impact plan’s liability.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
Valuation as at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gratuity | Compensated Gratuity Compensated
absences absences
Discount rate(s) 7.15% 7.15% 7.20% 7.20%
Expected rate(s) of salary escalation 7.00% 7.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Employee turnover 24% 24% 23% 23%|
Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined benefits plans and other long term employee benefits are as follows:
(Rs. in Million)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gratuity | Compensated Gratuity Compensated
absences absences
Service cost*
Current service cost 6.53 1.57 7.73 1.86
Past Service Cost . - 1.26 -
Actuarial losses - (1.11) - (3.95)
Net interest expense 3.88 1.46 344 145
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 10.41 1.92 12.43 (0.64)
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability**
Actuarial (gains)/losses (1.95) - {10.70)
Actuarial gains and loss arising form experience adjustments (1.47) - 2.38 -
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive income (3.42)| - (8.32) -
Total 6.99 1.92 4,11 {0.64)

* The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the "Employee Benefit Expense" line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
** The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in Other Comprehensive Income.
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37.6 The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefits is as

37.7

37.8

37.10

follows:
(Rs. in Million)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gratuity | Compensated Gratuity Compensated
absences absences
Present value of defined benefit obligation 57.49 18.54 57.99 20.19
Fair value of plan assets (3.64) . (4.14) -
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 53.85 18.54 53.85 20.19
Non current portion 37.73 13.10 38.98 14.73
Current portion 16.12 5.44 14.87 5.46
M t in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and other lang term employee benefits are as follows: {Rs. in Million)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gratuity | Compensated Gratuity Compensated
absences absences
Opening defined benefit obligation 57.99 20.19 61.31 24.21
Current service cost 6.53 1.57 7.73 1.86
Past service cost = 1.26 -
Interest cost 4,18 146 3.68 1.45
Remeasurement losses
-Actuarial losses (1.95) (0.65) {10.70) (3.67)
-Actuarial gains and loss arising form experience adjustments (1.47) (0.46) 2.38 (0.28)
Transfer In - - 0.09 0.08
Benefits paid (7.79) (3.57) (7.76) {3.46)
Closing defined benefit obligation 57.49 18.54 57.99 20.19
Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows: {Rs. in Million)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gratuity | Compensated Gratuity Compensated
absences absences
Opening fair value of plan assets 4.14 - 3.90 -
Interest income 0.30 - 0.24 -
Contributions by employer (including benefit payments recoverable) 0.10 - 1.55 -
Benefits paid (0.90) - {1.55) -
Closing fair value of plan assets 3.64 - 4.14 -

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation of gratuity:

[Rs. in Million)

2024 2023
Within 1 year 17.21 16.01
2-5vyear 36.44 36.42
6- 10 vear 16.91 19.33
More than 10 years 4.81 6.41

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 3 years (March 31, 2023: 3 years).

Plan assets

The fair value of Company’s pension plan asset as of March 31, 2024 and as on March 31, 2023 by category are as follows:
Asset category: 2024 2023

Investment with Insurer 100% 100%

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to

be settled.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation of gratuity to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is: {Rs. in Million)
Principal assumption Year Changes in assumption | Impact on defined benefit
obligation
Increase Decrease
Discount rate 2024 (-/+1%) -1.88 2.02
2023 (-/ +1%) -2.06 2.20
Salary escalation rate 2024 (-/+1%) 2.00 -1.90
2023 (-/+1%) 2.16 -2.06
Attrition rate 2024 (-/ +50%) 0.09 -0.18
2023 (- / +50%) -0.50 1.05
Mortality rate 2024 -/ +10%) 0.01 0.01
2023 (- / + 10%) 0.00 0.00
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Related party disclosures

S.No.

Nature of relationship

Name of the party

a.

Ultimate controlling entity

Indian

Bharti Enterprises | Helding) Private Limited (effective January 1, 2024).

{Itis held by private trusts of Bhartd famlly, with Mr. Sunil Bharti Mittal’s family trust
effectively controlling the said company )

Parent Company

Indian

Bharti Airtel Services Limited (effective January 1, 2024)

Bharti (LM) Entarprises Private Limited (formerly known as Insanity Productions
Private Limited) {till Decembar 31, 2023)

Associate Company

Indian
Dixon Electro Appliances Private Limited

Intermediate parent company

Indian
Bharti Airtel Limited (effective January 1, 2024)

Subsidiary company (Wholly owned)

Foreign
Beetel Teletech Singapore Private Limited

Key management personnel of the Company

Managing Director
Sanjeev Chhabra, Managing Director & CEO

Others:

Devendra Khanna (Director) (resigned w.e.f January 1, 2024)

Soumen Ray (Director) (w.e.f January 1, 2024)

Arvind Kohli {Director) (w.e.f July 1, 2022)

Ravinder Arora (Director) {(w.e.fJanuary 1, 2024}

Nidhi Lauria {Director) { w.e.f. 29.03.2024)

Sanjay Dua {Independent Director) {resigned w.e.f April 20, 2023)
Neha Sharma (Independent Director) (resigned w.e.f January 1, 2024)
Ankur Agrawal (chief Financial officer)

Manish Sharma (company secretary) (resigned w.e.fJuly 19, 2023)

Fellow Companies (effective lanuary 1, 2024)

Bharti Hexacom Limited

Bharti Telemedia Limited

Airtel Digital Limited

Nxtra Data Limited

Telesonic Networks Limited

Bharti Enterprises Limited

Bharti Management Services Limited (formerly known as Bharti Axa General
Insurance Company Limited)

(w.e.f. March 31, 2023)

Airtel Payments Bank Limited
Lavelle Networks Private Limited

Other Related Party*

Entities where Key Management Personnel of Parent company and their relatives
exercise significant influence

Foreign

Eiesha Limited

Indian

Bharti Foundation

Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited
Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited
Bharti {LM) Enterprises Private Limited

Othars:

Bharti Employee voluntary Benevolent fund
Bharti Land Limited

Rostrum Realty Private Limited

Bharti Reality Limited

* ‘Other related parties’ though not ‘Related Parties' as per the definition under Ind AS 24, 'Related party disclosures’, have been included by way of a voluntary

disclosure, following the best corporate governance practice
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BEETEL TELETECH LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

39.

Fair value measurements

39.1 The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2024 is as follows:

39.2

39.3

(Rs.in Million)
Measured at fair value Measured at Carrying
through P&L amortised cost value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents = 105.65 105.65
Other bank balances 5.77 5.77
Trade receivables 1,203.96 1,203.96
Forward Contracts 0.29 - 0.29
Other financial assets 126.00 126.00
Total 0.29 1,441.38 1,441.67
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables - 957.01 957.01
Borrowings * 1,689.11 1,689.11
Forward contracts . .
Other financial liabilities 981.19 981.19
Total - 3,627.31 3,627.31
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2023 is as follows:
{Rs. In Million)
Measured at fair value Measured at Carrying
through P&L amortised cost value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - 53.94 53.94
Other bank balances 350.70 350.70
Trade receivables - 925.89 925.89
Other financial assets - 84.69 84.69
Total - 1,415.22 1,415.22
|Financial liabilities:
Trade payables - 1,434.83 1,434.83
Borrowings - 748.28 748.28
Forward contracts 451 - 451
Other financial liabilities 1,141.88 1,141.88
Total 4.51 3,324.99 3,329.50
Fair Value hierarchy:
Ind AS establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritises the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs {Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Ind AS are described below:
Level 1 — inputs are based upon quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities which are accessible as of the
measurement date.
Level 2 — inputs are based upon quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active rharkets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active and model derived valuations for the asset or liability that are derived principally from or corroborated by
market data for which the primary inputs are observable, including forward interest rates, yield curves, credit risk and exchange rates.
Level 3 — inputs for the valuations are unobservable and are based on management’s estimates of assumptions that market participants would use
in pricing the asset or liability. The fair values are therefore determined using model-based techniques such as option pricing models and discounted
cash flow models.
The following table summarizes the financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:
(Rs. in Million)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
At March 31, 2024
Financial assets 0.29
Financial liabilities -
At March 31, 2023
Financial assets - -
Financial liabilities - 4.51

The Company classifies forward contracts in Level 2 as quoted prices can be corroborated based on observable market transactions of spot currency

rate and forward currency prices.

The fair value of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities approximates carrying amount because of the short-term nature of these
instruments. Further, during the year ended March 31, 2024, there were no transfer between level 1, level 2 and level 3 fair value measurement.
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40.1

40.2

40.2.1

Finandal instruments

Capital management

The objective of the C 's capital mar structure is to ensure that there remains sufficient liquidity within the C to carry out busi The C y
continuously monitors the long term cash flow requirements of the business in order to assess the requirement for changes to the capital structure to meet that objective and to
maintain flexibility.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances as presented on the face of the statement of
financial position.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements.

Gearing ratio as of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is as follows:

(Rs. in Million)
As at March  As at March 31,
31,2024 2023

Total borrowings 1,689.11 748.28
Cash and other bank balances 11142 404.64
Net debt 1,577.69 343.64
Total equity (1,040.49) (778.66)
Gearing ratio (%) -152% 44%
Finandal risk fr k
In its ordinary operations, the Company’s activities expose it to the various types of risks, which are associated with the financial instruments and markets in which it operates, The
C has a risk nent policy which covers the foreign exchanges risks and other risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities such as interest rate risks and

credit risks. The following is the summary of the main risks:

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. Credit risk is managed by Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Further Company
managed trade receivable risk through credit insurance.

Financial assets that potentially exposed the Company to credit risk are listed below:

(Rs. in Million)
As atMarch  As at March 31,
31, 2024 2023
Security Deposit Paid 17.16 15.77
Trade receivables* 1,203.96 925.89
Other financial assets 126.29 84.69
Total 1,337.41 1,026.35

*Refer Note 12.




40.2.2

40.2.3

40.2.3.1

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining cash in
accounts, establishing adequate banking facilities, and reserve borrowing facilities. The company actively monitors its actual and forecast cash flows and matches cash
requirements with the maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at:

(Rs. In Million)
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023

Less than 1 year 1-5 years more than 5 Less than 1 1-5 years more than 5

Particulars Carrying years Carrying year years
amount amount

Fnandial Liabilities
Trade payables 957.01 957.01 - = 1,434.83 1,434.83 - .
Interest bearing Borrowings# 1,694.31 1,277.46 - 416.85 758.08 115.46 231.40 411.22
lease liabilities 124.82 38.29 86.53 . 161.11 36.29 124.82 ¥
Interest bearing financial liabilities 744.51 744.51 - 876.54 876.54 - -
Other financial liabilities 127.03 127.03 - - 127.47 127.47 = -
Forward contracts - - - - 451 4.51 - -
Total 3,647.68 3,144.30 86.53 416.85 3,362.54 2,595.10 356.22 411.22

#Interest accrued has been included in interest bearing borrowings and excluded from other financial liabilities

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates {currency risk) and interest rates (interest rate risk) will affect the Company's income or value
of it's holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising
the return.

Fareign currency risk management
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Company's exposure to currency risk
relates primarily to the Company's operating activities and borrowings when transactions are denominated in a different currency from the Company's functional currency.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows.

{Amount in Million)

Particulars Currency March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade receivables usD 0.19 2.38
UsD 118 8.7%

Trade payables HKD 0.03 0.11
EUR 0.55 -

Other Receivables HSD 0.1 oL
EUR o 0.48

Other Payables usD - 0.03

Borrowings UsD 5.00 5.00

Of the above foreign currency exposures, the following exposures are not hedged by a derivative:
{Amount in Millian)

Particulars Currency March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade receivables usb 0.19 2.38
usp 044 132

Trade payables HKD 0.03 0,11
EUR 0.11 -

Other Receivables —_ o1 o1
EUR . 0.48

Other Pavables uso . 0.03
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40.2.3.2

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and EUR exchange rates, with all ather variables held constant. The impact on the
Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives and embedded derivatives

Particulars Currency ChangeInrate  Effect on profit
before tax
Increase/(decease)
Rs. in Million
For the year ended March 31, 2024 usp +5% (0.43)
uso -5% 043
EUR +5% (0.50)
EUR -5% 0.50
HKD +5% 0.01
HKD -5% (0.01)
For the year ended March 31, 2023 usb +5% 549
usD -5% {5.49)
EUR +5% 0.00
EUR -5% 0.00
HKD +5% 0.06
HKD -5% {0.08)

Derivative financial instruments*

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign currency forward to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rate on foreign currency exposure. The
counterparty for these contracts is generally a Bank or a Financial Institutian. These derivative financial instrument are valued based on quoted prices for similar asset and liabilities
in active markets or inputs that is directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.

The following table gives details in respect of outstanding forward contracts:
[Amount in Million)

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Outstandi
l.;Ixma:nltng Coverage Outstanding
Currency to Buy Coverage (INR) . MTM (INR) N Amount (Foreign | MTM (INR)
(Foreign (INR) Currency)
Currency)** rency
usD 479.01 575 033 1,274.31 15.49 {4.51)
EUR 3942 0.44 {0.04)
518.43 6.19 0.29 1,274.31 1549 {a.51)

*The outstanding forward contracts includes USD 5Mn having maturity prafile of more than six months and upto 1 year.

** The outstanding forward cover of USD Nil million { March 31, 2023: 3 million) against Open purchase orders issued to vendors

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to
the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company’s borrowings which are primarily exposed
due to variable rate borrowings are as below:

{Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at March | As at March
312024 31,2023
External commercial borrowing 416.85 411.22
Working Capital loan from Bank - 337.06
Working capital demand loan (floating rate borrowings) 697.00 -
Total 1113.85 748.28

Cash flow sensitivity analysls for varlable rate Instruments

The following table demonstrates the sansitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates of Borrowings with floating interest rates. A change of 50 basis points in interest rates for
variable rate instruments at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss for the below years by the amounts shown below. With all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows

[Rs. in Million)
Increasef (decrease) EAackoR ot
Particulars 4 before tax
in basis points

Increazef{decrease]
For the year anded March 31, 2024 0 557
-50 5,57
For the year ended March 31, 2023 50 -3.74

-50 3,74
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42

43

Relationship With Struck of companies

Rs. In million

Name of Struck off Companies Nature of Relationship with the Balance outstanding as at
Transaction struck off company March 31, 2024
Pan Cyber infotech Pvt Ltd Advance received Customer 0.01

Name of Struck off Companies Nature of Relationship with the Balance outstanding as at
Transaction struck off company March 31, 2023
Pan Cyber infotech Pvt Ltd Sales Customer Nil

Details of sales tax, customs duty and excise duty which have not been deposited as on March 31,2024 on account of disputes

are given below:

(Rs. in Million)

Name of the statue

Nature of dues

Forum where the
dispute is pending

Period to which amount
pertains

Amount unpaid
#

Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax Assessing Officer 2004-05 to 2009-10, 2014- 0.88
15, 2016-17 to 2017-18
Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax Appellate Authority | 2007-08 to 2008-09, 2013- 387.17
14 to 2017-18
Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax Sales Tax Tribunal 2013-14 2.05
Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax High Court April, 2005 to Dec,2008 5.53
GST Act, 2017 GST Assessing Officer 2018-19 0.79
GST Act, 2017 GST Appellate Authority 2017-18 3.19
Customs Act, 1962 Customs Duty DRI July'14 to 2017-18 62.84
Customs Act, 1962 Customs Duty Appellate Authority 2018-19 & 2019-20, 2021- 3.29
22
Total 465.74

#net of amount paid under protest of Rs. 25.89 million

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall
lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party(s)
(Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by
or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Parties}, with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall (i) directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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44  Financial ratios as per schedule IIl requirements

45 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
The table below details change in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those
for which cash flows where, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Company’s statement of cashflows as cashflows from financing activities.
Particulars Opening Balance as  |Interest Accrued Financial Cash  |Non Cash item |Closing Balance as
at April 01, 2023 Flows at March 31, 2024
Current Borrowings from banks - - 1,272.26 - 1,272.26
Non Current borrowings from banks 337.06 - {337.06]) -
External commercial borrowing from
bank - - 414.52 2.33 416.85
External commercial borrowing from
other related party 411.22 - {411.22) - -
Lease liabilities 128.07 12.67 (36.29) - 104.45
Interest 9.80 259.61 {(264.21) - 5.20
Total 886.15 272.28 638.00 2.33 1,798.76
Particulars Opening Balance as  |interest Accrued Financial Cash  |Non Cash tem |Closing Balance as
at April 01, 2022 Flows at March 31, 2023
Current Borrowings from banks 108.99 {108.99}) -
Non Current borrowings from banks 437.42 - (100.36} - 337.06
Other loan 111.30 - {111.30) - -
External commercial borrowing from
other related party 379.33 - - 31.89 411.22
Lease liabilities 11498 13.24 (32.77) 32.62 128.07
Interest 161 23230 {224.11) = 9.80
Total 1,153.63 245.54 {577.53) 64.51 886.15
45 SEGMENT INFORMATION

N |Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 Change Remarks
1|Current Ratio Current Asset Current Liabilities 0.69 0.77 -10%
2|Debt to Equity ratio Total Debts Total Equity (1.62) (1.33) 22%
3| Debt Service Coverage ratio Earnings available for | Debt Service (Note 0.96 0.87 10%
debt service (Note 1} |2)
4|Return on equity ratio Net profit after taxes | Total Equity 0.25 (0.18) -239%| due to loss in current year
5|inventory turnover ratio Cost of Goods Sold | Average inventory 13.24 18.88 -30%|Mainly due to reduction revenue
where inventory holding period is
lower
B|Trade receivable turnover Ratio Net Sales Average Accounts 9.19 10.19 -10%
receivables
7|Trade payable turnover Ratio Net Purchases Average Trade 7.30 6.14 19%
Payables
B|Net Capital turnover ratio Net Sales Working Capital (9.00) {21.16) -57%|due to decrease in revenue
g|Net profit ratio Net profit after taxes | Net Sales -2.70% 0.94% -387%|due to loss in current year
10{Return on capital employed Earning before Capital Employed 9% 61% -85%|due to loss in current year
exceptional item, (Note 3)
interest and taxes
11|Return on investment Earning from Average invested 2.34% 2.69% -13%!
invested funds fund in investment
(preference share,
fixed deposit)

Note 1: Earning available for debt Service= Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses + Interest + Exceptional item
Note 2: Debt Service= Principal repayments+lease payment+interest paid

Note 3: Capital Employed= Net tangible assets + total debts(including lease liability)

46,1 The Company publishes these Financial Statements along with the Consolidated Financial Statements. In accordance with Ind AS 108, ‘Operating
Segments’, the Company has disclosed the segment information only in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

46.2 Information about major customers
Revenue from two customers (previous year two customer) of the company represented individually more than 10% the company's total revenue.
47  Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification number G S.R. 206(E) dated March 24, 2021 {amended from time to time) in reference to the proviso to Rule 3 (1) of the

Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021, introduced the requirement of only using such accounting software w.e.f April 01, 2023 which has a feature of recording audit trail of
each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot
be disabled. The Institute of Chartered Accounts of India (“ICAI”) issued an “Implementation guide on reporting on audit trail under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (Revised 2024 edition)” in February 2024 relating to feature of recording audit trail.

The Company has used an accounting software(s) for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software(s). Further, there have been no instances of tampering with the audit trail
feature.
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48 Other Statutory information

i} The Company does not have any Benami property, where any Proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami
Property

iy The Campany is not daclared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

i} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction whichis yet to be registered with Roc beyond the sta tutory pariod,

iv) Tha Company has not traded or investad in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency duting the financial year.

v}  The Company does not have not any such transaction which is nat recorded in tha books of BCLounts that has baen surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year In the tax assessmeants urider the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such a5, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961,

vi)  The Company has not declared/proposed any dividend(including interim dividend) during the financial year,

49 TheCode onSocial Security, 2020 {"code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and Post-employment benefits received Presidential assent
in Szptember 2020, The Code has been published in the Gazatte of India, However, tha date an whith the Code will come into effect has not bean
notified. The Ministry of Labour and Empleyment has released drart tules for the Coda on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited

the suggestions from stakeholders. The Company will assass the impact of the Code when it comes inte effact and will recard any related impact in the
period the Code becomes effective,

50 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

51 Inaccordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has wrmovar of mare than Rs. 10,000 million during

52 There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at March 31, 2024,
53 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current period classiﬁcations/disclosures.
54  Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved for Issue by the Board of Directors on May 9, 2024,
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